UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF AGRICULTURE

Inre:
P&S Docket N2 D-07-0163

Clifford F. Dance, Jr. and Mike
Whitfield d.b.a. Gowan Stockyards

Respondents

Decision by Reason of Conscnt

This proceeding was instituted under the Packers and Stockyards Act (7 U.S.C. §
181 et seq.) (Act), by a Complaint filed on July 27, 2007, by the Deputy Administrator,
Grain Tnspection, Packers and Stockyards Administration, United States Department of
Agricultore, alleging that the Respondents willfully violated the Act and regulations
promnlgated thereunder (2 C.F.R. § 201.1 et seq.). The Complaint alleged that
Respondents failed to maintain and usc properly their custodial accounts for shipper’s
proceeds in violation of sections 307 and 312(a) of the Act (7 U.S.C. §§ 208, 213(a)) and
section 201.42 of the rcgulations (9 C.F.R. § 201.42). This deciston is entered pursuant
to the consent deetsion provisions ol the Rules of Practice Governing Formal
Adjudicatory Administrative Proceedings Instituted by the Secretary Undcr Various
Statutes applicable to this proceeding (7 C.F.R. § 1.138).

Respondents admit the junisdictional allegations in paragraph I of the Complaint
and specifically admit that the Secretary has jurisdiction in this matter, neither admit nor
deny the remaining allegations, waive oral hearing and [urther procedure, and consent
and aprec, tor the purposc of sellling this proceeding and for such purpose only, to the

entry of this decision.

Complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.



Findings of Tact

1. Clifford F. Dance, Jr. and Mike Whitfield (“Respondents™) are individuals doing
business as Gowan Stockyards, a partnership, whose business address is
Blackjack Road, Kosciusko, Mississippi, 39090, and whose mailing address is
P.O. Box 336, Kosciusko, Mississippi 39090.

2. Respondeuts are, and at all times 1uatcrial to this complaint were:

5. Engagcd in the business of conducting and operating Gowan
Stockyards, a posted stockyard subjcct to the provisions of the Act,
located in Kosciusko, Mississippi;

b. Eugaged in the business of a market agency buying and selling
livestock in commerce on a commission basis.

c. Registered with the Secretary of Agriculture as a dealer to huy and sell
livestock in commerce for their own account, and as a market agency to
buy and sell livestock in eommerce on a commission basis.

Conclusions

Respondents having admitted the jnrisdictional facts and the parties having agreed
lo the entry of this decision, the decision will be entered.

Rcespondents, their agents and employees, directly or through any corporatc or
other device, in connection with their activitics subjcct to the Act, shall ccase and desist
from:

1. Failing to fully reimburse the custodial account within the times prescribed in
section 201.42 of the regulations (9 C.F.R. § 201.42);

2. Failing to otherwise maintain the custodial account in strict conformity with the

provisions of section 201.42 of the regulations (3 C.F.R. § 201.42);



3. Using funds received from the sale of consigned livestock for payment of banking
fees, general operating expcnses or for any purpose other than for (1) payment of
the net proceeds to the consignor or shipper, or to any person that the market
agency knows is entitled to payment, (2) to pay lawful charges against the
consignment of livestock which the market agency shall, in its capacity as agent,
be required to pay, or (3) to obtain any sums duc the market agency as
compensation for its services.

In accordance with section 312(b) of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 213(b)), Respondents are
assessed jointly and severally a civil penalty in the amount of fourteen thousand dollars
($14,000), six thousand ($6,000) of which will be held in abeyance pending Respondent’s
compliance with the provisions of the Understanding with Respect to Civil Penalty
entered into by the parties. The provisions of this order shall become final and effective
on issuance.

Copies of this decision shall be served upon the parties.

Done at \;{ashington, D.C.

this Y‘T \day of

H.D. Bro
Attommey for Respondents Atforney for Complainant



